-5 CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

MUKHTAR AL-BAXRI,
DOB 04/20/840
Defenddant

Magistrate # O - /% =70 f

I, Edward J. Heedham, the undersigned complainani, belng duly sworn state the
follewing is true and corrsct to the best of my knowledge and belier.
Between on orx shout a specific date unknown but at least from the Spring, in
the Hestern District of New Yozrk and elsewhere, the defendant, MUKHTAR AL~
BAKRI, DOB 04/20/80 and others did, knowingly and unlawfully provide, attempt
to praovide and conspive teo provide msterial support and resources to a
foreigh terrorigt oxganization in violation of Title i8 United $tates Code,
Sectiong 23398 and 2.

I further state that I am & Special Agent of the Federsz)] Bursaz of
Investigation and that this complaint is based on the facts sel cut in ay

attached zffidavit.
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[ Sworn ta before me and subscribed in my presence, \
}
o)
Septembexy |} . 2002 at Buffala, NY
Dote CLby and Brate

Righarsd J. Broara, V.S, Distriect Court Judge LM d : dﬁ-ﬁ-ﬂﬁ.—-ﬂ.———
Haze U Tlele of Judietal 5fftser dignaturz of ﬁclu atticer
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

State of New York)
County of Erie }
City of Buffale )
AFFIDAVIT

EDWARD J. NEEDHAM, being duly sworn, deposes and EBYS!

1. I am a Special Agent of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI}, assigned to the Joint Terrorism Task Force
{JITF} for the Western District of New York (WDNY), The JTTF is a
combination of federal and state law enforcement formed in order to
identify and iﬂﬁEStigatE international and domestic terxorism and
terroriats, I have bezen a FBY Special Agent for cver 14 years,
having worked on internationzl terrorism cases for 13 ya3rs, In
those years, I have conducted Lerxorist investigatiens concerning
incidents oceurring in the United States and abroad. Many of these
investigations have involved Usama Bin Laden and the al Qaeda
organization, I havé #lso received specizlized counterterrorism
training regarding Usamz Bin laden end the operations af al Qaeda

znd cther terrorist organizastions. I have been the coordinsior of

ihe JITF-WDNY since its inception last year.

2. I make this affidavit in support of & criminal
complaint charging MUKHTAR AL-BAKRYI, DOB 04/20/80, a citizen of the
United States, with a violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 23393 and 2‘,' namely: providing, attempting to provide and



conspiring to provide material support and resources to designated

terrorist organizations.

3. ‘This affidavit is submitted for a limited purpase,
that is, a probable cause determination; net all facts of the
investigation are contained harein. This affidavit is based upon my
personal knowledge, experience, training, informastion supplied to
me by other law enforcement end government personnel, my review of
documents and records, as well as other informztion developed

during the course of this investivgation.

Intrecduction

4, At zll relevant times from in or about 1989, an
international terrorist group exzisted which has been dedicated to
opposing non-I=lamic governments with force and vioclence. This
crganization was founded by Usama Bin Laden and others., From in or
about 1969 until the present, the group has baen referred to as "al

Gaeda" ("the Base}.

5. Bin Laden and al Qaeda has violenlly opposed the
nited Statea for several reasons. Firsit, the United States is and
has heen regarde_d as an "infTidel" begavse it is not governed in a
menner consistent with the greoup's sxtremist interpretation of

Islam. Second, the United States is and has been viewsd as

1)



' roviding essential support for other "infidel" goverrnments and
p g PR

“IREEIFUtTons, pPAFtiCUlaEly the goversments of Saudi Arabia and

Egypt, the nmation of Israel, and the United Nations orgsnizationm,
which are and have been regarded as enemies of the group. Third, al
Qaede oppused the involvement of tha United States armed forces in
the Gulf War in 1991 and in Operation Restore Hope in Somalla in
1832 and 13593, In particular, al Qaeda opposed the continued
presence of American military forces 1n Saudi Arabia {and elseswhere
on the Haudi Arabian peninsula) following the Gulf War. Fourth, al
Qaeda opposed the United States Government becauss of the arrest,
conviction and Imprisonment of persons belonging to ai Qaeda or its
‘affiliated terrorist groups or those with whom it !.mrked; For these
and other reasens, Bin Laden declared a jihad, or holy war, against
the United Sitates, which he has carried out through sl Qaeda and

its effiliated organizations,

6. Ore of the principal goals of al Qaeda is aﬁd has been
te drive the United States armed forces out of Saudi Arabia (and
elsewhere on the Saudi Arabian peninsdla} and Somalia by viclence.
Hembers of al Qaeda issued fatwshs (rulings on Islamic law)

indicating that such attacks wers both preoper and necesssary.

7. $ince at least 128%, Usama Bin Laden and the



supparted training cswps in Afghanistan, which camps were used to
instruct members and associates of al Qaeda and its affiliated
terrorist groups 1n the use of firearms, explosives, chemical
weapons, and other weapons of mass destruction., Camps such as al-
Farooq have been used by al Qaeda for the purposes of training.
Based upen my training and experience, Usama Bin Laden has besn
known to visit and address trainees at such camps. In addition to
providing training in the use of various weapons, Lhese camps have
been uyged Uo caonduct operational planning sgeinst Dnited States
targets around the world.
The Defendant

8. MUKHTAR AL-BAKRI 1s a naturalized citizen of tﬁe
United Stetes, who is_tempprarily residing in Bahrain, whose U.S,

The investigation

9, The investigation was initiated 48 8 result of
informatien received by the FBI thal a numher of individusls from
the Lackawanna, New York area had attended and participated in
Lerrorist training in Afghanistan during the late spring and early

swnmer of 2001,

10. In the past year, myself and other Agents of the FBI

have had occaslon ko speek to SAHIM A. RLWAN several times. During



those conversations, Mr., ALWAN advised that himself, JABER ELBANEH,

An Uncharged Co-Conspirator £, YAHYR GOBA, YASEIN TAUERER, SHAFAL
MOSED, FAYSAL GALAB, and MUKHTAR AL-BRKRI {all residents or former
residents of Lackawanna, New York) had been in Pakistan during
April and'May, 2001, Mz, ALWAN further advised that theé purpose of

their being in Pakistan was to attend religiuus-training known as

Taklighi Jamaat.

11. Information from U.S5. Customs revealed that FAYSAL
GALAR, SHAFAL MOSED and YASEIN TAHER entered the United States on

June 27, 2001, through JFK Airport in New York City.

12. On July 8, 2002, SHATAL MOSED was interviewsd hy
Agents cf the FBI. on Jely 26, 2002, FBI hgents had occasion wo
interview YASEIN TAHER regarding his alleged lravel to Pzkistan,
Both YRSEIN TAHER znd SHAFAL MOSED ac]-:nuwledge-d that they had heen
in Pakistan for approximately thrze months between April, 2&01 and
July 2001 for Tabklighi Jam=mat training. They also confirmed thab
they had traveled with TAYSAL GALAS to Pakistan for the treining.
Roth were aware that SARIM ALWAN had also attended the Tablighl

Jamzzt training at ths same time.

13. On Septembear 11, 2002, MUKHTAR AL-BRAERI was

interviewed by 3 Special Agent of the ¥BI in Bahrain. Afler being



advised of his Miranda rights and agreslng to speek to the agenls,

MWMI; AL-BAKRI acknowledged that he and other individuals from
Lackawanma, New York had traveled to Pakistan in the summer of
2001 in order te attend Tablighi Jamaat religious training., He
acdvigsed thal the three persﬁns he traveled with wers SAHINM ALWAN,
YAHYR GOBA and JABER ELBANEH. HMr, AL-BAKRI initially denied any
travel into Afghanistan., Mr. AL~RPAKRI stated that the Ffour
individuals traveled from Lackewanna to Toronto to London ko

Dubai; United Arab Emeritus, to Karachi, Pakistan.

14, The interviewing Agenits advised Mr. AL~BARKRI thatl
they balieved he was not being truthful. shertly thersafter, Mr.
AL-BAKRY disclosed that ne had not been fully candid and made

additional statemsnts to the interviewing Agents.

15. After again being reminded of his rights and after
having those rights re-read te him, Mr. AL-BAKRI advised that he

wished to continue speaking with interviewing Agentas.

16. Mr, ATL-BAKRT stated that in June 2001, he and his
thres friends .(GOBA, ELBANEH snd ALWAN] traveled to Pakistan. Hs
told the agent that they spent one week in Karacni, Pakistan, then
flpw to Quetta, Pakistan. After spending = night, the four

irdividuals drove the following day to Kandahesr, Afghanistan where



they stayed in a guesat house for a short time. They then went Lo

the Al-Faroog frain;ng Camp near Kandahar. While at t@e'trainiag”“
canp, Mr. AL-BAKRI stated that he was trained on the uve ol the
Kalashnikav-assﬁult rifle, handguns and long range rifles. Nr. AL-
BaKRI further stated that An Uncharged Co-ConQpira:or A was already
im Afghanistan when they arrived and that The Uncharged Co-
Conspirator R attended the game training camp. Tﬁe Uncharged Co-

Conspirator A was observed receiving training im heavy artillery.

17. Mr. AL-BAXRI stated that the leader 6f his group of
four to Pakisten and Afghaniston way YAHYR GOBA. Mr. AL-BAKRT
stated that there wevre approximately 200 people being trainesd in
the camp. This group of 200 was divided into smaller groups of 20,
Ha further stated all of the individusls attending the camp had ar
were assigned code names and that hi§ {(AL~BAKRI)} oodename was ABU
OMAR ALYATEI. He alse provided the Uncharged Co-Conspiratior Bﬁs-

codegneme .

18, Mr. AL-BBKRI stated that while at the trainidy camp,
USAMA BIN LADEN wigited rhe camp and gave o speech to all of the

trainees,

19. Mr. AJAL-BAKR!I further advised that SAHIM ALVAN

Lrainad for 1 or 2 weeks.



recent trip from the United States to Bahrein (in Che Sumer of
2002, hé\scught a2 replacement passport, fdlsely claiming that he
had lost his passport. He further stated that he made this false
claim so as to conceal his previous tra;vels from immigration
anthorities. In so doing, it is submitted that MUEHTAR AL-BAKRI
did so to evoid having his passport reflect his earlier -i:'ormal

entry intoc Pakistan.

21. MUKHTAR AL-BAKRI confirmad that he has maintained an
g~-mail acecount and has comunicated with The Uncharged Co-

Conspirator A by e~mall. Hel further stated th;:t on Jduly 18, 2002,

he sent an s—mail to s person, who 1z &t this time an uncharged co-
conspiratoer, advising that person of information which law
enforcement personnel interpret as referring to possible terrorist

activity.

22. On September 12, 2002, I had occasion to re-
interview SAHIM RALWAN at his piace of employment at Medina, New
Yorlk. | After initizl diggussion, Mr. ALWAN teld the agents that
he had not bsen complebely truthFful. He stated that he and his
friends had attended terrorist treining in Afghanistan when they

went to the Middle East in the spring/summer, 2001,



23. M. ALWAN advised that a total of seven individuals

from Lackawanna, New York had traveled to Afghanistan and that they
had gone in two groups. The first group left in approximately
April, 2001, consisting of SHAFAL MOSED, YASEIN TAHER and FAYSAL
GALAB. The second group left in May, 2001 and congisted of

himself, YAHYA GOBA, JABER ELBANEH ard MUKHTAR AL-BAFRI.

24, Mr. ZALWAN further advisad that his group left
Lackawanna, New York on Ifiay 14, 2001 and traveled to Toronto, then
to United Arabp Emiraztes, %Yhen tc Xarachi, Pakistan. When they
arrived, they were nei by The Uncharged Co—Conspirator A, @ former
Lackawanna resident, U.8. Citizen and an aceuaintance of ALWAN,
who thereupon arranged for their further transportation imto
Afghanistan. After about € days, based upon srrangements made by
¥he Uncharged Co-Conspirator A, YAHYA GOBA and MUKHTAR AL-BAKRI
traveled to Quetlta, Paklstan. Bftey approximetely 9 days in
" Xarachi, JABER ELBAMNEH, SAMIM ALWAN and The Uncharged Co-
Cunspiratér A rraveled to Quetta, Palklstan where they stayed at a
cuest house For one day. The mext day JABER ELBANEE, SAHIM ALWRAN
and The Uncharged Co-Conspirator A went by sutorobile Lo Kandahar,
Afghanistan. Upon arrival in Kandsher, The Uncharged Co-Conspirator
A left for an unknown location while JABER ELBANEE and SAEIM ALWAN
stayed at a guest hpuse for four to Live days., While at the guest
house, they received lectures or Jihad (holy wer}, prayers and

Justificarion for uslng suwicide as a wesponr. Cn the fourth or



£fifth day, JABER ELBANEH, and SAHIM ALWAN were takan to a training

camp near Kandahar in & bus with ten other umknown individuals.
Upon arrival at the camp, SAHIM ALWAN saw MUKATAR AL-BAKRI, TREYA
GOBR, SHAFAL MOSED, YASEIN TAHER and FAYSAL GALAB, SHAFAL MOBED,
YASEIN TAHER and FAYSAL GALAB advised that they had been in
- training for 3-4 weeks, receiving ingtruction on firearms and
mountain climbing. MUKHTAR AL-BAKRT, and YAHYA GOBA joined JABER
ELSANEH, and SAHIM ALWAN for the start of the basic camp.  On or
about the fifth day of training, SAHIM ALWAN saw The Uncharged Co-
Conspirater A who told him that he (the Uncharged Co~Conspirator A)
Wwas in a more advanced training camp neafby. The Uncharged Co-
Cemspirator A seemed to personally know some of the trainers at the
camp . The Uncharged Co—Conspizator A stated he was receiving

training on anti-aircraft guns.

25%. pDuring the pourse of the training, the attendees
were given instruction in the use of firearms. The training was
scheduled to last seven weeks. While st the training camp, in
approximately the second week, USAMA BIN LADEN visited the camp and
spoke o all ef the trainces. TUSAMA EII'\I LADEN gavs a spesch about
the alliance of the Islemic Jihad and ai Rasda, espousing anti-
United &tates and anti-Israel sentiments. ALMIN saw &ll of his
acquaintances from Lackewanna except- for The Uncharged Co-
Conspirator A at the speech.

26. After departing the training camp, Mr. ALWAN stated

10D



-----.----th‘at---’p.e----then---r&turnad _______ to the United Stales in late June, 2001.

27. A check with Canadlan Immigration revealed that
SAHIM ALWAN entered Canada 2t soronts Pearscn Aliport on Rir Canada

at 7:00 PM Juns 21, 2001.

28, Bt all times raelevant hereunder, the Secretary of
State had and has designated, pursuant to Spction 21% ef <tThe
Immigratien and Nzturalization Act, al gaeda and Egyptisn Islamic
Jihad (EIJ) as foreign terrorist organizations. -
Conglusion

29. Baged upon the forsguing, it is submitted that thers
ie probable cauge to beliesve vhat the defendant, MUKHTAR AL-BAKRL,
‘has vielmted Title 18, United Stales Code, Séctions 23308 and Z,
that venue resides in the Western District of MNew York and that a

camplaint and warrant should be issued for his arrest.

ed | afotel lon_

EDWARD J. NEEDHAM

Special Agent

Federal Rureau of Investigation
Buffalo, ¥ew York

cubscribed and sworn to
before me this \’b day of
September, 200Z. ~

odd O M

HONCRASLE RICHARZU. ARCARA
Unites States Disfrich Court Judge
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Hrited States Bistiict Tonrt
WESTERN . ' DISTRICT OF NEW TORK
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
v, WARRANT FOR ARREST

Hukhtar Als Alhaleri CASE NUMBER: Jao = I m__./{)?

To: The United States Marshal
and any Authorized United States Oificer

: . I 1i Albakri
YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED to arrest __ukhtar A : A1bakri

N

and bring him or her forthwith to'the nedrest magistrafe te answer a(n)

0 indictment [ Intormation X% Complaint - [] Onder of court  [] Violation Notice -] Prabation Vislation Pe'uiion —

charging him or Lier with (et cserntion of ofense Knowingly and unlawfully providing,

e in ¢ provide, and rongpiring to ovide materiazl o Lo F 2 A
gﬁg ?ggougcgs 'ooa oreign terrgrxstgorgaggzatman. to wit, ngma_ Hin Laden
and the al Qeeda terrprigt organization,

. L 18 23398 and 2
Inviolationof Title .. United Siales Code, Suction(s)

Richard J. Adrecarsa

Unitéd States Distriet Judge
Nzme of Iz 3uing Officer

Titte of Issuing Otficar T T

Seprember /¥, 2002 ‘at Buffalo, New Yor

Qule and {oeallgn

Signater? ol lssuing Officor

Bailixedats by.

Nare of Judicial Ollicer

HETURN

This warrant was recelved and executar with 1he arrest of the above-named defendant at

r
'

DATE RECEIVED NAME AND TITLE OF AFlH'EETIAiF;‘ OFHCER SGNATURE OF ARRESTING CFFLER

BATE DF AMREET

i




